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General information

Commercial Registration Namber 101850 dated July 20, 2016
Sharcholdery Abdulrahman Ali Saqer Alatawi
Sajeeb Kasim
Registered Office Building 111,
Bankers
Anditors Awsel Public Accountants & Management
Consultants
PO Box 18198
Manama,

Kingdom of Bahrain.



Board of Directors’ report

The Directors of S.A Fashlon Trading W.L1L, {the “Company™) have great picasure in presenting
the annual report and the financial statements of the Company for the year cnded December 31,
2018,

Princlpal activities

The princlpal activities of the Company are the sale/trade of clothing, footwear, apparel accessorles
and leather articles.

Reaults

The results of the Company are given in Page 6 to the financial slatemems,

Directors and Management

Ihmmummmm:mtdnﬂngmm.

Auditor

The financial statements have been sudited by Awael Public Accountants & Management
Consultants, Bahrein, who has exgressed fheir willingness and considered themselves sligible for
appolntment,

Staff

The Directors take this opportunity to place on record their appreciation to the staff for thelr toyalty
and dedication, which has greatiy helped to maintain the reputation and results of the Company.

KJanais %

Abdulrahman Ali Sager Alatawi Sajech Kasim
Chairman Managing Director
September 5, 2019

Manama, Kingdom of Bahrain
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Independent auditors’ report to the Sharcholders of S.A. Fashion Trading W.L.1.
Report on the Aundit of the Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the financis! statements of S.A. Fashion Trading W.L.L. (“thec Company”), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2018, and the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equily and statement of cash flows
for the year then ended and notes to the financigl slatements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies,

In our opinion, except for possible cffects of the maliers described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion Section of the report, the accompanying financial statements present fairly the Ananciat
position of the Company as at December 31, 2018, and of its finuncial performance and ifs cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financiel Reporting Standards
(IFRSs).

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. We were appointed as ouditors of the Company subsequent to the year ended December 31,
2018 and thus did not observe the counting of the physical inventories at the cnd of the year,
We are unable to satisfy ourselves by altemative means concerning the inventory quantities
a8 at December 31, 2018. As & result, we are unsblc to determine whether any adjustments
were necessary in respect of the recorded or unrecorded inventories,

2. The Company did not follow the expected credit loss method in the preparation of financial
statements which in our opinion, is oot in accordance with Intemational Financia Reporting
standard No 9 — Financial Instruments (“JFRS 9"),

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Qur
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilitics for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Protessional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilied our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the TESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of matter

The Company has reported & loss of BD 53,849 for the year cnded December 31, 2018 and there

gte borrowings of BD 110,437 in outstanding debt obligafions as presented on its statement of
financial position as at December 31, 2018 resulting ia equity deficit of BD 4,730,

teenlstny



Other information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Board
of Directors® report but does nol include fhe financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our sudit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obiained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, hased on the wark we bhave performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information; we are required (o report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this repard.

Responsibilities of management and these charged with governance for the financial
statements

Management is responsible for the prepacation and fair presentation of the financiel statements in
acvordance with 1FRSs, and for such internal control ag management determines ix necessary to

enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether duc
to fraud or error,

[n preparing the financial statuments, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to contimue as a going concemn, disclosing, as apphiceble, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management cither intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no reslistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilitics for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are lo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and t0 issue an auditor’s report
that includcs our opinion, Reasonable assurance is g high level of asgurancc but is not 2 guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exysts. Misstatements can srise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the ecanomic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstaternent of the financial statcmeants, whether
duc to frand or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficicot and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting & material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may invoive coliusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an anderstanding of internal control refevant te the audit in order to design audit

procedures that arc appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectivensss of the Company’s internal control.
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* Obtain an understanding of internal contro} relevant to the audit in arder to desipn audit

procedures that are appropriale in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reascnableness of
acconnting estimates and related disclosures made by manapement,

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence abtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ahility to
conlinue 23 a going concem. If we conclude that a materinl uncertainty exists, we are
required lo draw attention in our auditor’s report 1o the related disclosures in the financial
statemenis or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion, Our conclusions
arg based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report, However,
future events or conditions mey cavsc the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

‘s Hvaluate the overal! prescnlation, structure and content of the financial staterments, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in infernal control that we identify during our audit. ;

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

As required by the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law, we repart that:
a) the Company has maintained proper accounting records and the financial statements are
prepared;

b) the financial information contained in the Directors® report is comsistent with the financial
statements,

¢) We arc not aware of any violations during the year of the Commercial Companies Law, o the
terms of the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association that would have had a
material adverse cffect on the busincss of the company or on its financial pogition; and

d} satisfactory explanations and information have been provided to us by the managemeat in
response to all our requests.

g
. RGN

August 28, 2010
Manama, Kingdom of Bahrsin.



$.A FASHION TRADING W.L.L.
RIFFA--KINGDOM OF BAHRAIN

STATEME F F 18
{In Bahrgini Dinars)
Nojes 2018 2017

ASSETS
Normecurremt grsets
Plant and equipment 5 26933 33,824
Total non-current assets 26,933 33,824
Current axsels > o
Inventories 6 84,494 39,944
Trade and other receivables 7 56,304 16,460
Due from related partles 8 7,711 £7,201
Cash and bank balances 1.871 3,311
Totel corrent assats 150,480 76.916
Totul assets 177413 110,740
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Bquity
Share capltal 9 5,000 5,000
Accumulated losses (B2,099) (28,250)
Shareholder's account 11 72,367 64872
Total equity(deficit) (4.732) 41622
Non-cuarent liabilitles
Provislon for employees’ end-of-service benefits 12 1,810 1.810
Bomrowings 13 13,419 25,561
Total non-current lisbilities 15,229 27,371
Curvent liabilities
Borrowings 13 97,018 6,554
Bue to related parties 8 - 6
Trade and other payables 14 69.E95 34,593
Total current lzhilities 166.916 41,747
Total liabilities - 182,143 §9.118
Total eqgaity and labilities 177,413 110,740
. e financial statements were approved and by the Shareholders on September 5, 2019 and signed

by;

D $ y

Abdulrahmar All Sager Alaawi Ssjesb Kasim
Chairman Mansging Director

Notes on pages  to 22 form an Integral part of these financial statements

5



5.A FASHION TRADING W.L.L.
RIFFA- KINGDOM OF BAHRAIN

For the period

from July 20,

2018

{Inception) to

December 31,

Nom 2018 2017

Revenue 155,406 87,947
Cost of revenue (107,839)_ (55,592)
Qross profl 47,547 32,355
Other income 33 -
Generul and edministrative eXpenses 15 (96,675) (58,141)
Finance costs (4,754) (2,464)
Lass for the year/period (53.849) (28,250)
Other comprebensivo Inoome -

—

'Fotal comprehensive loss for the year/period (53,849) (28,250)

s, ¥

Abdulrahman Ali Saqer Alstawi Sajeeh Kasim
Chairman Managing Director

Notes on pages 9 to 22 form an intogral part of these financlal statemeants



5.A FASHION TRADING W1.L.
RIiIFFA~ KINGDOM OF BAHRAIN

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
EOR THE YEAR ENED DECEMBER 31,2018

{In Bahraini Dingrs) '
Share  Accumulated  Shareholder’s Total
Capital losses account
Share capital introduced 5,000 - - 5,000
Total comprehensive loss for the - (28,2504 - (28,250)
peried
Net movement in sharcholder's 64,872 64,872
account . _ € J.. o
Balance al December 31, 2017 5,000 (28,250) 64,872 41,622
Total comprehensive loss for the (53,849) - (53,849)
year
Net Movement in ghareholder’s 7,495 7495
account - N _
Balance at December 31, 2018 3,000 (82,099) 72367 {4,732)

Notes on pages 9 to 23 form an integral part of thesc financial statements



S.A FASHION TRADING W.I.1.
RIFFA- KINGDOM OF BAHRAIN

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

_{In Bahraini Dinars}

———— e i -——

Cash flows from operating activities:

Loss for the year/period

Adjustraents for:
Depreciation expense
Provision fior employees® end-of-service benefits
Finance costs

Changes in operating assets and lishilities:
Inventories

‘Trade and other receivables

Trade an other payables

Due from related parties

Duae to related parties

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing setivity:
Purchase of plant and equipment
Net cash used in investing activity

Cash flows from financing activities:
Share capital introduced

Finance costs paid

Net movement in borrowings

Net Movement in Shareholder’s account
Net cash from firancing activities
Inerease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year/period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the yeat/period

Represented by:
Bank balances
Cash baiance

For the
period from
November
23, 216
{inception)
to December
2018 34,2017
(53,849) (28,250)
7.960 6,042
1,810
4,708 2464
(42,250) (17,934)
(44,550) {39,944}
(39,844) (16,460)
35,304 34.593
9,490 (17,201)
(600) 600
(82,450) (56.346)
- (1,069) (39.866)
. {1,069) . (35,360) |
- 5,004
(4,708) (2,464)
78,322 32,115
7,495 64,872
81,110 99,523
(1,340) 3,311
X 1)
1,971 3311
281 3,134
1,600 BRY
1971 3,311

Notes pages 9 to 23 form an integzal part of these financiz] statements



S.A FASHION TRADING W.L.L.
RIFFA- KINGDOM OF BA[IRAIN

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2018
(Tn Bahraini Dinars}

NOTES TO THE. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

1. STATUS AND ACTEVITIES:

S.A Fashion Trading WL 1, ("the Company”) is a limited liability company registered wilh the
Ministry of Industry, Commerce and Tourism in the Kispdom of Bahrain under commercial
registration number 101850-1 dated July 20, 2016. The registered office of the Company is ,
Building 111, Road 7, Block 91 1, Riffa, Kingdom of Bahraiy

The principal activities ol the Company are sale/trade of clothing, footwear, apparel accessories
and leather articles, ‘Ihe Company also operates the foliowing branches(“the Branches™) in the

kingdorn of Ratwain and the financial information of these Branches are included in these financial
slalemcnts, .

|| Name . CR pumber . Principal actlvity
L | 8.4 General Trading W1.L | 101850-3 datng Febroary 19,2017 Sale/trade of food und beverages -
. . General trade
ii. | S.A. Fashion Factory W.LL | 1018502-3 dated April 17,2017 | Apparcl miloring avtivies
il | V8trap WI.L 1018504 dated November 0. 2017 Saleftrade of clothing, foorwear
Apparel accessuries, end leather
i _ , , arficles. ;
v, | 8.A Factory Chotlet W.L.L 101850-5 dated Jenusry 2, 2018 Appavel Tailoring Activities
A T _ B Generul Trade
2. F A D T AT INA
R R TA

IThe Company has adopted the Standards and Interprefations issued by the International
Accounting Standard Board (TASB) and the International Financial Reporting Interprefations
Committee (LFRIC) of the IASB that are relevant to the operations of the Company and cffective
for the current reporting period.

Improvements/amendments to IFRS 20142016 and 2015/2017 cycle

Improvements/amendments to IFRS issued in 2014/2016 and 2015/2017 cycles contained
numerous amendments to IFRS that the TASB considers nen-urgent but necessary. ‘lmprovernents
to IFRS* comprise amendments that result in accounting changes to presentation, recognition or
easurement purposes, as well as terminology or editorial amendments, related to a varicly of
wdividual TFRS stendards. The amendments are cffective on or after January 1, 2018 and
subscquent periods with cither adoption permitted. No material changes to accounting policies are
expected as a result of these amendments.

Standards, anmendments and interpretations effective and adopted in 2018

The following new standards, amendments {o existing standards or interprelutions to published
standards is mandatory for the first time for fhe fAnanciel year bepinning January 1, 2018 and
where adopted in the preparation of these financial statcments:



5.A FASHION TRADING W.L.L.
RIFFA— KINGDOM OF BAHRAIN

NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE, YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
([n Bahraini Dinars}

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED TNTERNATIONAL FINANCIA
REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRS) (CONTINUED) Vo

Title Effective for annual periods
Standard oy beginping on or after
Interpretation
IFRS 9 Financial instruments Janpary 1, 2018
IFR8 15 Revenue from contracts with customers January 1, 2018

(1) IFRS 9 Financial Instruments -

IFRS 9 replaces the provisions of IAS 39, that refates to the recognition, clessification and

measurement of financial assets and liabilities, derecognition of financial instruments, impaitment
of financial assets und hedge accounting.

The adoption of IFRS O from January 1, 2018 has resulted in changes in accounting policies and
adjustiments to the amounts recoginsed in the financial ststements, The new accounting policies
arc set out in Note 3. In eecordance with the exemplions available pg per the trunsitional provisions
of IFRS 9, the comparative tigures have not been restated and adoption of this standard had no
significant impact on the financisal statements.

(1) TFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 supersedes IAS 11 Construction Contracts, IAS 18 Revenue and related interpretations
and it applics to all revenue arising from contracts with customers, unless those contracls are in
the scope of other standards. The new standard establishes a five-step mode] to account for
revenue ansing from contracts with customers. Under TFRS 15, reveme is recoghised at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring goods or services 1o a customer,

The standard requires a Establishment to exercise Judgement, laking into consideration all of the
relevant facts and circumstances when applying cach step of the medel to contracts with their
customers. The standard also specifies the accounting for the incremental costs of obtaining a
confract and the costs directly related to fulfilling a contract.

There is no significant impact on the Establisbment’s financial statements from the adoplion of
this standard.

Stundards, amendments and interpretations issued but not vet effective in 2018

The following new/amended accounting standards and interpretations have been issued, but are
not mandatory for financial period ended December 31, 2018, They have not been adopted in
preparing the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018 and will or may have an

effect on the entity’s future financial statcments. in alt cases, the entity intends to apply these
standards from application date as indicated in the table below-

Bk

[ )



3.A FASHION TRADING W.1..L.
RIFFA- KINGDOM OF BAHRAIN

NOTES TO THE KINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
(In Bahraini Dinars) -

[

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRS) (CONTINUED) ; -

Standard or Title Effective for annual perinds
interpretation beginning on or after
TAS 12 Income taxes Jamuary 1, 2019

[AS 19 Bmployee benefits January 1, 2019

IAS 23 Borrowing costs January 1, 2019

LAS 28 Investment in Associate and Joint Ventures Janwary 1, 2019

IFRS 9 Finaneial instruments Janvary 1, 2019

IFRS 3 Business combinations Janpary 1, 2019

IFRS 11 Jont agrcements Janvary 1, 2019

TFRS 16 Leases January 1, 2019
IFRIC 23 Unceatainty over income tax treatments Januwary 1, 2019

IFRS 17 Insurancc contracts January 1, 2021

(it} IFRS 16 Leases

i.e. lessors continue to classity leases as finance or operating leases.

IFRS 16 replaces existing leases guidance including IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether
an Arrangement containg a Leasc, SIC-15 Operating Leases-Incettives and S1C-27 Evaluating
the Substance of Transactions Involving the T.ogal Form of a Lease.

The standard is cffective for annual penioils beginning on or after January 1, 2019, Early adoption
is permitted for entities that apply IFRS 15 Revenuc from Contracts with Customers on or before
the date of initiat application of IFRS 16.

At the date of authorization of these financial statemcnts, new Accounting Standards and
Interpretations were in issue. The management anticapates that all of the above Standards and
Interpretations as applicable, will be adopted in the Company’s financial statements in future
periods and that the adaption of those Standards and interpretations will have no material impact
on the financial statements of the Comeany in the period of initial application.

3. BIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
—_"""'_""_'—_l-n_m_.._..._
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and in accordance with
Internatiomal Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS"), and the applicablc pravigiuns of the
Bahrain Commercial Companies Law,

Basls of meastirement

These financial statements have heen brepared under the historical cost convention cxeept fur any
modifications required by IFRSs referred 1o in the accounting poticies given helow and are
prescated in Bahraini Dinars (BD) which is the fanctiongl currency of the Company.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires the usc of certain

11



§.A FASHION TRADING W.L.1.
RIFFA—- KINGDOM OF BAHRAIN

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

e ——— el o+ 0 WP
(In Bahraini Dinars)

- r——————— e ——

—_——— e e e,

Basis of measarement

critical accounting estimates. I also requires management fo exercise judgment in the process of
applying the Company’s accounting policies.

Coing concern

The Company has a reported equity deficit of BD 4,730 as at December 31, 2018 and reported a
loss of BD 53,849 for the year then ended. In eddition, the Company is reporting Borcowings of
BD 110,437 as outstanding obligations on its financial position as at Dcecember 31, 2018,

However, based on the current plans and strategics, the dircctors have 1 reasonable expectation
that the Company will generate adequate cash flows and profitability which will allow the
Company to continue in operational existence in the foreseeable future. On the basis, the directors
have maintained the going concern assumplion in the preparetion of these financial statements.

The principal accounting policies applicd in the preparation of these financial statements are set
out below, Thesc policies have been consistently applied fo all the periods presented, unless
otherwise slated.

(a) Plant and equlpment

Plant and equipment are stated et historical cost less accumnulated depreciation. Cost includes al]
costs dircctly attributable to bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use,
Depreciation is caleulated on the straight-line method 1o write-ofF the cost of plant and equipment
to their estimated residual values over their expected useful life of fve years.

Repairs and renewals arc charged to the profit or loss when the expenditure is incurred. The gain
or loss arising on the disposal or zetirement of an item of plant and cquipment is determined ag

the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amounl of the asset and is recognized
in the profit or loss.

The camrying values of the plant and equipmcnt are reviewed for impairment when events or
chitiges in circumstances indicate the carrying values may not bc recoverable. if any such
indication exists, and where the carrying values excced the estimated recoverable amounts, the
plant and equipment are written-down to their recoverable amounts.

(b) Imventories

Inventories arc stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value afier making due allowsance for
any obsolefe or slow-moving items. Cost is based on the weighted averape price method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price less alt estimated costs of completion and
casts to be incurred in marketing, setling and distribution.

iz



S.4A FASIHON TRADING WI. 1.,
RIFFA— KINGDOM OF BAHRAIN

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2018
(In Batraini Dinars)

T P i e S o —

3. SIGNITICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (CONTINUED)

(¢} Financial assets

e — By

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories;

1. Finuncia! assets at fair value throngh profit or loss (FVTPL), end
r 5L Financial assels at amortised cost.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets arc initially recoginsed at fair value, ncluding transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset except transaction cost on financis) instruments
at FVITL are not included in the amount at which fthe instrument is initially measured, instead
they are immediately recognized in profit or loss. Equity and debt instruments are measurcd at

fair value and all changes in fair value are recognized in the staterent of profit or loss under IFRS
9,

Financial assets at amortised cost

Finaneial assets carried at amortised costs are initially recognized at fair value pls transaction cost
that are directly attributable to their acquisition or issue and subsequently carried st amortised
cost method less, provision for impairment.

Categories of financial assets measured at amortised cost are given below:
Trade and other recetvables

Trade and other receivables are camied at their anticipated realizable values. An estimate is made
for impaired trade reccivables based on review of all outstanding amounts at the year-end. Bad
debts arc written-ofY duoring the year in which they are identificd. Impairment provision is
recognized based on expected losses over the entire life of the trade receivables unless these are
collectable over more than 12 months, in which casc impairment losses are recognized on
expected credit losses madel developed by the Company.

Cash and eash equivalents

Cash and cush equivalents are recorded at amortised cost in the Snancial staternents less expected
erecit loss. Cash and cash cquivalent comprise of cash on hand and bank balances which are
subject to insignificant risk of fluctuation in its realizable value.

Impairment of financial asseis
Fimancial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at cach reparting date. Financial assety
are considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as & result of onc or more

evenis that oconrred afier the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated fisture cash
flows of the financial asset have besn impacted.,

13



5.A FASHION TRADING W.L 1.
RIFFA- KINGDOM OF BABRAIN

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2018
{In Bahtaini Djuars)
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3. BIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ]'{.'ILICI[CUHTIHUEBI

Impairment of financial assets (Continned)

Objective evidence of impaiment could include significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or breach of contract such as defautt or delinguency in interest or principat
payments; or it becoming probable that the bommower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-

Crgamization; or the disappearance of an active market for that financigl asset becausc of financial
difficulties.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
Boancial assets with the exception of trade receivables where the carrying amount is rediced
through the use of an allowance account. When a contract receivable 1s uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account, Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account arg
recognized in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Establishment derecopnises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash
fiows from the asset expire; or it transfers the financial asset and substantially il the rigks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the RBastablishment ncither transfers nor
relains substantially 41[ the risks and rewerds of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Establishment recognizes ifs rctained interest in the asset and un associated liability for
amoumts it may have to pay. If the Bstablishment refains substantially !l the rigks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financia! asset, the Establishment confinues lo recognize the financial
asset and also recognizes a collateralized horrowing for the proceeds received.

The difference hetween the carrying amount of the financial asset derecognized and the sum of

the consideration received/receivable is recognized in profit or [oss.

(d) Finamcial Habilities

Financial liabilities are initislly measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, Financial
liabiltties are subsequently measured at amortized cost.

Hipancial lisbilities are rccognized in the Company’s finaacial statements when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instroment.

Derecognition of financial labilities

The Company derecognizes financiat liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations
arc discharged, cancelled or they expire, The difference between the carrying amoyunt of the
hoancial liabikity derecognized and the sum of the considerafion peid/payable is recognized in
profit or loss, )

14



S.A FASHION TRADING W.L.L..
RIFFA~ KINGDOM OF BAHRAIN

NOTES 1'0 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
(In Babwaini Dinars) B

————

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

(e) Related party transactions

These represenl transactions with related parties, os defined in Intermational Accounting Standmd
24: Related Party Insclosures, which include Sharcholders’, Nirectors and schior management of
the Establishment, their close family members and entities of which they are principal owncrs.
Pricing policies and terms of thuse fransactions are approved by the Esloblishment’s menagement,
Related party balances are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed maturity,

[ S

= - - -

(1) Revenue rccognition under IFRS 15
Sale of Gands

The Company’s contracts with customers for the ssle of goods gencrally include one performance
obligation. The Company has included that revenuc from sale of goods should be recognized at

the point in time when control of the asset is transivred to the customer, generally on delivery of
Lhe goods.

Determining the éransaction price

The Establishment's revenuc is derived from fixed price contracts aud thercfore the amount of
revenue 1o be eamed from each contract is determined by refcrence to those fixed prices.

() Offsctting

Rinancial assets and lisbilifies are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position, if tho Company has a legally enforceable right to sct offthe recogmzed amounts
and the Establishinent intends to seftle cither on 4 net basis or realize the asset and settle the
tiability simultaneously.
(h) Lenses

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease fransfer substantially atl
the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All othier leases are classified as operaling leases,

Operating leasc payments arc recognized as an expcnse on a straight-line basis over the lesse
lerm, except where another systematic basis is more represeniative of the time pattem: in which
economic benefits from the teased asset are consumed.

{1} Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Establishment has a present obhgation (legal or constructive)
as a result of & past event, ix is probable that the Bstablishment will be required to seitle the

(k) Pravisions

obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation,

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present oblipation at the reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertaingios
surrcunding the obligation.

15
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5.A FASHION TRADING W.L.T..
RIFFA~ KINGDOM OF BAHRAIN

NOTES TO YHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR TIE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

(I Bahraimi Dinars)

—— e L R i — —— e

(1) Pravision for employees® end-of-service benefits

ibe Bahrain Labour Law. Thc entilcment to thesc benefits is based upon the employec’s final
salary and fength of service, subject to the completion of a minimum service period. The expected
©05(3 of these benefits arc acerued over the period of the employment,

For Bahraini employces, the Establishment makes contributions to the Social Insurance
Organisation based on the applicable law and reguiation. The Establishment obligations are
limited to these contributions, which are expensed when due.

(m) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly aliributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
asscts, which are asscls that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended wsc or salu, are added to the cost of thosc assets, until such time as the sssets arc
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowiny costs are recognised in profit or §oss in the period in which they are incurred.
{n) Government grants

The henefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of interest is treated s a government
grant, measured as the ditforence between proceeds reccived and the fair value of the loan based
on prevailing market interest rates.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

In (he application of the Establishment’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 3, the
Establistrment is required to make judgments, estimales and assumptions about the carrving
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical expericnce and other factors that are cansidercd
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates,

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects ondy that perivd, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revigion affocts
both current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying the entify’s accounting policies
In the process of applying the entity’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 3, and due

to the natue of operations, the management did not have to make judgements thet may have
significant cffect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements,

16



5.A FASHION TRADING WAL,
RIFFA- KINGDOM OF BAHRAIN

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 312018
(Tn Bahraini Dinars) |

Key sources of ¢stimation ﬁn_&:iﬁinl]r

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of cstimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing & material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of asscis and labilities within the next financisl period arc discussed helow:

Useful fives of plant and equipment

The management determines the useful lives of plant and equipment and the related depreciation
charge. The depreciation charge for the period will change significantly if the actual life is
different from the estimated useful life of the asset.

Impairment of tangibie assets

The management tests regularly whether tangiblc assets have sutfered impairment in accordance
with the accounting policies stated in Note 3. The recoverable amount of an asset is determined
bascd on value-in-use method. This method uses cslimated cash Dow projections over the
estimated useful life of the asset discounted using market ratcs.

Impairment provision for receivables

The management tests, regulardy, whether any receivables have suffered impairment in
accordance with accounting policies stated in Note 3. The recoverable amount of the receivable
is determined based on estimated collectability,

EMMQ_UE&LM
Office Motor Furpiture

Equipmenis Vehicle &
fittings Total

Cost
Additions during the period 247 37,155 240 _39,866
Balance at December 31, 2017 2,471 37,155 240 39,866
Additions during the vear _. 5058 S ey S04 1,069
Balance at Dccember 31, 2018 2,976 37,155 804 41:!_5'35:_
Accumulated depreeiation
Depreciation expense 482 =511 49 6,042
Balance at December 31, 2017 482 5,511 443 6,042
Depreciation expense 462 Y .~ | T 7,960
Balance at December 31, 2018 974 12,942 86 14002 '_
Carrylng amount
As at December 31, 2017 l_,ﬂﬂ_ﬂ 31,644 | SRR N v
As at December 31, 2018 2,002 24,213 718 26,933

: I
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6. TRADE AND OTIIER RECEIVABLES:

2018 27
Trade receivables 53,343 11,188
Advance to stafl’ - 370
Deposit 600 600
Advance fo suppliers 2361 4. 102

56,304 16,460

‘The Company hos not applied the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifttime expected loss allowance for all tradc and other receivables,

Trade reccivables are unsecured, nonintorest-hearing and have credit tcrms of 60 to 120 days,
Advanccs to suppliers pertain fo advance payments on purchases of trade goods, materiuls and
services for the operations of the business. Advances to employees are noninterest-bearing and
are normally settled through salary deduction,

The share capital of the Company comprises of 100 shares of BD 50 each, contributed as follows:
Percentage
of
Number ownership
of shares Amonnt inferest
Abdulrahman Ali Seqer Alatawi 51 2,550 S1%
Sajech Kasim 49 2,450 4%

100 5000 100%

8. STATUTORY RESERVE:

As required by the Bahirain Comamercial Companies Law, an amount equal to minimum of 10%
of Company’s profit beforc uppropriations is fo be trunsferred to a non-distributable TCSEIVe
account until such time as a minimum of 50% of the sharc capital is scl aside. This reserve is not
available for distribution except in the circumstances stipuiated in the Bahrain Comnmepcisl
Companies Law. No amount is transferred to statutory reserve due io loss during the vear,

9. EROVISION FOR EMPLOYKES END-OF-SERVICE BENEETTS:

The movement in end-of service benefits liability applicsble to expatriate emplovees is as
follows:

2018 2017

Balance at the beginning of the year 1810 -
Accruals for the year/period - 1,810

Balance at end of the year/period 1,810 1,B10
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2018 2017
Bank Overdrafi 85,206 -
Vehicle loan 25,231 32.115

110,437 32,115

Presented as: 201X 2017
Current 97,018 0,554
Nog-current 13419 2556]

[T —

110437 32115

The vehicle loan is towards purchase of vehicle from local financial institutions.

11, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

Rclated party balances included in the statement of financial position are as follows:

Relationship 2018 2017
Due to related parties Directors 7,711 17,201
Due to related parties Other related party . 600
7711 13,776

Key Management Personnel

Key management personnet are those persons baving authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Company, directly or indirectly, including the
Directors of the Company.

Transactions with key management personal included in the statement of profit or loss are as
follows

Nature of transaction Nature of relationship 2018 2017
Short Term Employee benefits Directors 12000 .

12. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES:

2018 2017
Tradc payables 53,343 29.730
Accrued expenses 37,342 4,863

_ 69,897 34,593
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s an
Staff costs 34,666 32,985
Depreciation exponses 7,960 6,042
Rent and utilities 6,960 5,055
Commission 775 459
Fuel Charpes 2535 2314
Telephone Intcmet 1591 433
Repair & mantenance 2851 624
Printing & stationery 3,061 4,205
Audit Fees 368 950
Direclor Fees 12,000 -
Other expenses 23,908 5244

nlOD08 L SR141

14, KINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS:

Fimancial instruments include financial assets end liabilities carried on the statement of financial
position. Vinancial asscls include trade and olher receivables, cash and buank balances. Financial
liabilities include deferred reveuve, trade and other payables, due to related parties and
borrowings. The particular recognition methods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy
statements associated with each item.

The Company is exposed to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
17.1 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or luture cash fows of a financial instrument will

fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
change cquity prices.

17.1.1 Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the faic value or futurc cash flows of 2 financial instrmment
will fluctuate duc to changes in foreign cxchunge rates. The Company’s financial assels and
financial lisbilities are denominated primarily in Bahreini Dinars and accordingly management
consider the Company is not expused to significant currency risk.

17.1.2 Interest rate risk

interest rate risk is the risk that the fuir value or firture cash flows of a Bnancial instrument will
fluctnale due to changes in market intcrest rates. The Company’s interest risk is limited to the
borrowings from the financial institutions.

If interest rates had bean 50 basis points higherlower and all vther variables were held constant,
the Company's profit for the year ended December 31, 2018 would increase/decrease by BI» 5,522
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17.1.3 Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of » financia} instrument will
decreasc as a result of changes in equity prices. The Company is not exposed fo the risk of change
in cquity prices es the Company’s financial assets does nof include investments in marketable
secyrities.

17.2 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party {0 a financial instrument will causc a financial loss for the
other party by failing to discharge an obligation. All financial asscts arc subject to credit risk.
Credit cxposure is controlled by counterparty limils that arc reviewed.

The Company has adopted a poliey of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties. Credit rigk
on liquid funds is limited becanse the counter partics are bunks with reasonably good eredit

rafings.

The management considers the maximum exposure to credit risk is lmited to carrying amount of
the financial asscts et the reporting date.

17.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk, also referred to as funding risk, is the risk that an enterprisc will encounter difliculty
in meeting commitments associated with financial labilities. Liquidily risk may result from an
inability to sell a financial asset quickly at close to its fair value.

Following are the contractual maturities of financial liahilitics including interest payments, if any:

e g e e L

2017 Carrying Contractual 12 Mare
amount nadiscounted months or than 12
cash flows less months
Trade and other payablcs 29,730 29,730 28,730 -
Bue to a related party 600 600 600 -
Horrowings 32,115 32,115 6,554 25,561
62,445 62,445 36,884 3556}
2018 Carrying Contractual 12 More
amgunt undisconnied months than 12
cash flows or {ess months
Trade and other payables 53,343 53343 53,343 -
Borrowiags 110,437 110,437 11,812 93,625
163,720 T 163,780 65,155 08625

-

17.4 Fair value of financial assets and Habilites
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Fair value js tha price that would i]&i'l‘:i.‘-&i'}'ﬂﬂ.lﬂ sell :m-mf:t u;‘ilaiﬂ_id UHusfér_a_iﬁthﬁr inan
ordurly transaction between market participanis at the measurcment date. (.onsequently,
differences may arise hetween the carrying values and the fair value estimates.

The catrying value of all financial assets and hiabilitics reflected in the financial statements
approximate their fair valucs at the reporiing dates.

17. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT:

The Company manages the capital structure in the contexl of economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. The Company's objective when managing capital is (o
safeguard the Compuny’s ability to continue as a gomg concern and to maintain o capital base to
suppoit the sustained development of ifs businesses and maximize the Shareholders’ wealth,

In order to achieve this objective, the Company monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by Equity. Equity includes share capitel, retained camings, statutory reserve and
Sharcholders’ gecounts.

Giearing ratio:
2018 2017
Borrowings 110,437 32,115
Less: cash and baok balances (1,971) (3,310}
108,466 28,804
Equity 4730y _ 41622
Uearing ralio - .69
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Board of Director’s report

The Directors of S.A. Fashicn Trading W.LL {the “Company”) have great pleasure in presenting the
annual report and the financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2019,

Princlpal activities

The principal activities of the Company are the sale/trade of clothing, footwear, apparel accessaries and
leather articles.

Results

The results of the Company are given in Page 7 to the financial statements.

Directors and Management

There was no change in the management during the year.

Auditors

The financial statements have been audited by Awsel Public Accountants & Management Consultants

Bahraln, who have expressed their willingness to continue In offlce and considered themselves eligible
for re-appointment.

Staff

The Directors take this opportunity to place on record their appreciation to the staff for their loyaity and
dedication, which have greatly helped to maintain the reputation and results of the Company.

’Lf,f,fj ~ m;ﬁ? 4

PRI |
Abdulrahman Ali Sager Alatawl
Chairman

August 6, 2020
Manama, Kingdom of Bahrain
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR™S REPORT : - - - - ghngin Web ... .o -
To the Shareholders of
5.A. Fashlion Trading W.LL,

Riffa, Kingdom of Bahrain
Repart on the Audit of the Financlai Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of S.A. Fashion Trading W.LL {"the Company”), which
comprise of the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2019, and the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for

the year then ended, ang notes to the financial statements, including a summary of slgnificant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, except for possible effects of the matters desccibed in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
Section of the report, the accompanying financial statements present fairly the financial position of the
Company as at December 31, 2019, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basls for Qualified Opinion

1. We were appolnted as auditors of the Company subseguent to the year ended December 31,
2019 and thus did not observe the counting of the physical inventories at the end of the year. We
are unable ta satisfy ourseives by alternative means conceming the inventory quantities as at
December 31, 2019, As a result, we are unable to determine whether any adJustments were
necessary In respect of the recorded or unrecorded inventories.

2. The tarﬁp'any"diél not follow the expected credit foss methed for financlal assets in the
preparation of _ﬂna nclal statements which in our opinian, Is not in accordance with International
Financial Reporting standard No 9 - Financial Instruments [“IFRS 9”).

3. The Company did.not follow the present value of the minimum lease payments method for the
accounting of ‘right of use asset’ and the lease liabillty In the preparation of financial statements
which in our opinion, is not in accordance with International Financial Reporting standard No 16
- Leases ("IFRS 167).

4, The share capital of the Company has been eroded completely. The company has reperted a loss
of BD £5,385 and there is negatlve equity of BD 70,117.

5. We are unable to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence with respect to the bank
balance ar other banking agreementis as the management did not reguest confirmation of
balances fram the bank and we were unable to perform alternative procedures due to fack of
adequate Information. Hence, we could not determine whether any adjustments to these
amounts or disclosures were necessary.

Awnel Fubfc - e .
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6. We are unable to obtain suﬁ't:tentmd apprnprhﬁe audit zﬁdenm with TESpECt te bank overdraft
and vehicle loan repayment detsils a5 bank m& il:a'l:em&nt and vehlele lpan repayment
schedule for the period ended December 31, 2019 were not provided 'o Us. Herce, we could not
determine whether any adjustments to these amounts or discipsures were necessary.

We conducted our audit In an:r:n nhnr.& mth mtenﬁtmnal Stantiards on Auditing {{SAs}. Our
responsibili{ies under these standards are furﬂ'ler dﬂiﬂihﬂll in the Alsﬂltﬂr’ s Responsibilities for the Audi
of the Financial Statements section of our report.’ We are mdependent of the Company in accardance
with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfifled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
IESBA Cade, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basls for our gualified opinion.

Other inforrmation

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Board of
Directors’ report but does not Include the financial statements and our avditor’s report thereon. Our

opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In copnection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibllity is to read the other
Information and, in doing so, consider whether the pther information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibliities of menagement and those charged with governance for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines s necessary {0 enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material missiatement, whether due te fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial staternents, management Is responsible for assessing the Company’s abllity to
contlnue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, maltters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting uniess management either intends ta liquidate the Company or to
cease pperations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responslble for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

3
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Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasenable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whethér due to fraud or esror, and to issue an audlitor's report that
fncludes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a3 material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considefed material If, Individually or in the

ageregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic declsiens of users taken on the
basls of these financia statements.

As part of an gudit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professionat
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

s [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures respansive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve coliusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control,

& QObtaln an understanding of Internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonahleness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtainad, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on theé Company's ability to continue 25 a
going concern. If we conclude that-a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attentlon [n our auditor’s repart to the related disclosures in the financlal statemems or, if such
disclosures are :mdéﬁuate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtalned up to the date of our auditor’s report. Hawever, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to'cease to continue as a going concern.

» Eualuate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the distlosures, and whether the financlal statements rEprEEEﬂt the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and slgnificant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internai control that we identify during our audit.
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Report an other lagal and regulatory requirements

A5 reguired by the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law, we repart that:

a) the Company has malntalned proper accounting records and the financlal statements are in
agreement with those records;

b} the financlal information contained in the Board of Director’s report is consistent with the financial
statements;

€) We are not aware of any viclations during the period of the Commercial Companles Law, or the terms
of the Company’'s memorandum and ariicles of asscciation that would have had & material adverse
effect on the business of the company or on its financial position; except that the company’s capital
I's inadequate to realize its objections In accordance with Article 109: and

d) satisfactory explanations and information have been provided to us by the management in response
to all our requests.

. ::::‘{alﬂf I ;},1 ‘I""-.
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"|. .._ "'q. ',- ‘_. _'.-
Awael Public\iccountants & Management Consultants \ ‘:‘-':n ; N

Manama, Kindgom of Bahrain,
Auditor Registar Number 11

August 6, 2020
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5.A FASHION TRADING W.LL.

STATEMENY OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2019
lin Bahraini Dinars)

Notes 2015 2018
ASSETS
Non-Current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 18,746 26,933
Total non-cuwrrent assets 18,746 26,933
Current assets
Inventories 6 50,459 84,494
Trade and other receivables 7 43,457 56,304
Due from related party 8 6,761 7,711
Cash and cash equivalents 504 1,971
Total current assets 101,221 150,480
Total assets 119,967 177,413
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 9 5,000 5,000
Accumulated losses (147,484) (82,099)
Shareholders account 11 72,367 72,367
Total equity (Deficit) {70,117) 4,732
Non-current llabillties
Provision for employees’ end-of-service benefits 12 3,020 1,810
Long term barrowings 13 11,798 13,419
Total non-current llabilities 14,828 61,072
Current fiabilities
Short term borrowings i3 96,087 97,018
Due to a related party 8 1,724 -
Trade and other payahles 14 77,445 62,808
Total current liabllitles 175,256 166,916
Tatal Habillties 190,084 182,145
Total equity and l[labliitles 119,957 177,413

The financial statements were approved by the Shareholders on August 6, 2020 and signed by:

) = -

Abiduirahman Afi Saqer Alatawi
Chairman

MNotes on pages 10 te 26 form zn integral part of thess financial statements

&




5.A FASHION TRADING W.L.L.

STATEMENT OF PROFAT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019
(in Bahraini Dinars)

Notes 2019 2018
Revenue 81,630 155,406
Costs of revenue {56,873) (107,859)
Gross profit | 34,757 47,547
Other income 1,286 33
General and administrative expenses 15 (99,809} {96,675}
Finance costs (1,619} (&,754)
Loss for the year (65,385) {53,849)
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year (65,385) (53,849)

,: A 5
i) &A= lts
/

Abdulrahman Ali Saqer Alataw]
Chairman

Notes on pages 10 to 26 form an integraf part of these financial statements



5. A FASHION TRADING W.L.1.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES N EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

{ln Bahralni Dinars)

Balance as at Japuary 1, 2018

Total comprehensive loss for the vear
Net movement in shareholders’
account

Balance at December 31, 2018

Total comprehensive loss for the year
Balance at December 31, 2019

Notes on pages 10 to 26 form an integral part of these financial siatements

Share Accumulated Sharehclders Total
capital " losses actounts

3000 {28,230) 64,872 41,622

- {53,849) . (53,845)

- - 7,495 7,495

5,000 {82,099) 72,367 (4,732)

______ - . 165385 - [65,385)

5000 (147,484) - 72,367 (70,117}




5.A FASHION TRADING WL L.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE ?E.ﬁ_ﬂ EH HE_D DECEMEER 31, 2013
{In Bahraini Dinars} |

Cash flows fram operating activities:

Loss for the year/period

Adjustments for:
Depreciation expense
Provision for employees end-of-service benefits
Finance costs

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Inventorles

Trade and other recelvables

Trade and other payables

Due from related party

Due to related party

Net cash provided by/(used In) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activity:
Purchase of plant and equipment
Net cash used in investing activity

Cash flows from financing activities:
FInance costs pafd

Net movement in borrowings

Net Movement ln Shareholder’s account

Net cash {used in)/from financing activities
(Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
Represented by:

Bank balances
Cash bafance

Notes on pages 10 to 26 form an infegral part of these financial statements

2015 2018
(65,385) (53,249)
8,187 7,960

1,220
1819 4754
(54,359) {41,135)
33,995 (44,550)
12,847 (39,844)
7.547 35,305
950 9,490
1,724 (600)
2,704 {81,334)
- (1,069)
- {1,069)
(1,619} {4,754)
(2,552) 78,322
2 7,495
{4,171) 81,063
{1,467) (1,340)
1,971 1,311
. 204 - 197n
150 281
154 1,690
~_ 5D4 1,971




5.4 FASHION TRADING W.L.L.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019
{In Bzhraini Dinars)

1. STATUS ARD ACTIVITIES

S.A Fashion Trading W.L.L. (*the Company”) is a Limited Liability Company registered with the Ministry of
Industry, Commerce and Tourism in the Kingdom of Bahraln under commercial registration number

101850-1 dated July 20, 2036.The registered office of the Company Is, Bullding 111, Read 7, Block 911,
Riffa, Kingdom of Bahrain,

The princlpal activities of the Company are the saleftrade of clothing, footwear, appare! accessories and
leather articles. The Company also operates the following branches in tha kingdom of Bahrain and the
financlal informatlan of these Branches are included in these financial statements,

= e s

Name CR number | principal activity |
{1 | VStrap W.LL 101850-4 dated November 9, 2017 Saleftrade of clothing, .
footwear, apparel
accessories, and leather
TR T - amclesh -

il | 5.4 Factory Qutiet W.L.L, | 101850-5 dated January 2, 2018 Appare] Tailaring
.. Activities, General Trade
i ‘| S.A.  Fashlon Factory | 101B50-3 dated April 17, 2017 Apparel tailoring activities

- W.L.L i
iv | 5. A. General Trading | 101850-2 dated January 19, 2017 Sale/Trade of Food and
W.L.L I | /% Beverages, General Trade

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS
a, New stondards, interpretotions ond amendments effective from 1 Jgnuary 2019

New standards impacting the Company that will be adopted in the annual financlal statements for the

year ended 31 December 2019, and which have given rise to changes in the Company’s accounting
policies are:

» |FRS5 16 Leases {iFRS 16); and

= |FRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments (IFRIC 23)
Other new and amended standards and Interpretations issued by the I1ASB that wifl apply for the first time
in the next annual financial statements are not expected to impact the Company as they are either not
relevant to the Company's activities or require accounting which is consistent with the Company’s current
accounting policies.



5.A FASHION TRADING W.LL.

NOTES TO THE _FIMANEIAL STATEMEH'_E
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019
{In Bahraini Dinars)

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS {Continued)

b. New stomdards, interpretations and amendments not yet effective

There are a number of standards, amendments to standards, and interpretations which have beenissuad
by the IASB that are effective in future accounting periods that the groug has decided not to adopt early,
The most significant of these is are as follows, which are all effective for the period beginning 1 January
2020;

» |AS 1 Presentation of Financlal Statements and IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting

Estimates and Errors (Amendment — Definition of Materiat)

» |FRS 3 Business Combinations {Amendmaent — Definition of Business)

» Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

¢. Other

The Company does not expect any other standards Issued by the IASB, but not yet effective, to have a
material impact on the Company.

The following Is a list of other new and amended standards which, at the time of writing, had been issued
by the |1ASB but which are effective in future periods. The amount of quantitative and qualitative detail
to be given abaut pach of the standards will depend on each entity’s own circumstances,
e [FRS 17 Insurance Contracts (effective 1 January 2021) - In June 2019, the IASB issued an exposure
draft to armend IFRS 17, including & deferral of its effective date to 1 January 2022. At the time of
writing, these amendments had not been finalized.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basls of preparation

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared on basis of historical cost. The Company's
financial statements are presented in Bahrain Dinars which is the functional currency of the Cornpany. All
amounts are rounded to the nearest Bahrain Dinar.

Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with International Flnancial
Reporting Standards (“FRS"} and the applicable requirements of the Bshrain Commerclal Companies
Law. .

Going concern

The financial statements of the Company are prepared on the basis that the Cempany is a going concern
and will continue I operation for the foreseeable future and it has no intention or necessity to liquidate.

The principal sccounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statemenis are sef out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to 2R the periods presented, unless otherwise
stated,

FE
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED]

Going Concern (Contlnued)

We draw attention to the financial statements which indicate that the Company has reported a loss of
BL» 65,385 for the year ended December 31, 2019 and there are borrowings of 8D 107,885 in outstanding
debt obligations as presented on its statement of financial position as at December 31, 2019 resulting in
equity deficit of B 70,117. The factors described above, indicetes the existence of 2 material uncertainty
related io the events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability te cantinue
as a golng concern. The shareholders have committed themselves to support the company to meet its
obligations for one year.

(a) Property, plant and equipment

Property plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation, other than
capital work in progress. Cost Includes all costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to working
condition for its intended use,

Depreclation Is calculated on the straight-line methed to write-off the cost of property, plant and
equipment to their estimated residual values over their expected useful life as below.

‘Officeequipment —  TEyears i
Motor vehicles 5 years e
| Furniture and fitiings 5years

Repairs and renewals are charged to the profit or loss when the expenditure Is incurred. The gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an tem of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and Is recognized in the
profit or ioss.

The carrying values of the property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes In clrcumstances indicate the carrying values may not be recoverable, If any such indication
exists, and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amounts, the property, plant and
equipment are written down to their recoverable amounts.

(b} Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and nei realisable value after making due allowance for any
absolete or slow-moving items. Cost is basad on the weighted average price method. Net realisable value

represents the estimated seiling price less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred in
marketing, selling and distribution.

ay
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED]

{c} Impalrment of tangihle assets

The carrying amounts of the Company's assets ofher than the financial assets are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impalrment. if any such Indication exists,
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated, and an impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying
amount exceeds the recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the profit and [oss
account.

{cl) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial labilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of tha instruments.

Financial assets and financlal liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial fizbitities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financlal assets or financial liabifities, as appropriate, on initial ;ecbgnitinn. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financla! liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

fe} Financlal assets
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

1. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), and
2. Financial assets at amortized cost,

Financial assets ot foir value through profit or loss (FYTPL)

Financial assets are initially recognized at fair value, including transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisitlon of the financial asset except transactlon cost on financial instruments at
FVTPL are not included in the amount at which the instrument is initially measured, instead they are
Immediately recognized in profit or loss. Equity and debt insiruments are measured at fair value and ali
changes In fair value are recognized in the statement of profit or loss under IFRS 9.

Finenciol assets of amortized cost
Financial assets carried at amoriized costs are hitlally recognized at fair vaive plus transactian cost that

are directly attributable to their acquisition or issue and subsequently carried at amortized cost method
less, provision for impairment.

-EF
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3. SIGNIEICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED)

{e) Financlal assets (Continued)

Categories of financial assets measured at amortized cost are given below:

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognized at historical cost and subsequently carried at thelr
anticipated realizable values. An estimate is made for impaired trade receivables based on review of ail
outstanding amounts at the perlod-end. Bad debts are written-off during the period in which they are
dentlfied. impairment provision is recognized based on expected losses aver the entlire life of the trade
receivables unless these are collectable over more than 6 months, in which case impairment losses are
recognized an expected credit losses model developed by the Company.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are recorded at amortized cost in the ﬁnpnr.lal statements. Cash and cash
equivalent comprise of cash on hand and 2 bank balance which are sublect to insignificant risk of
fluctuation in its reallzakle value.

Impairment of financlal assets

{FRS 9 requires the Company to record an allowance for expected credit loss far all loans and other deht
financial assets not held at fair value thraugh profit or loss (FVTPL).

Expected credit losses are based on the difference between contractual cash flows due In accordance
with the contract and afl the cash flows {including those arising from any credit enhancements that are
part of the contract} that the Company expects to receive.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates

that the Company is unfikely to receive the outstanding contractuzl amounts in full before teking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Company.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

() Financial assets {Continued)

Derecognitlon of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financlal asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire; or it transfers the financial asset and substantially a'l the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the Company reither transfers nor retains substantially ali the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes Iits
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Con pany
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company
continues ta recognizes the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds
recefved.

The difference between the carrying amount of the financlal asset derecognized and the sum of the
consideration received, and recelvable Is recognized in profit ar loss.

(f} Financlal liabilities

Financlal llabilities are inltially measured at falr value, net of transaction costs. Financial llabilitles are
subsequently measured at amortized cost.at present, the financial llabifitles of the Company consist of
long-term borrowings, due to a related party, trade and other payables,

Financial liabilities are recognized in the Company's financial statements when the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Derecognition of financlal llabilitles

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognfzed and the sum of the consideration paid and payable is recognized in profit or loss,

(g) Related party transactions

These reprasent transactlons with related parties, as defined in Internationaf Accounting Standard 24;
Related Party Disclosures, which include the Chalrman, Managing Director, Shareholders, their clese
family members and entities in which they are principal owners. Refated party balances are unsecured,
interest free and have no fixed maturity.

{h) Revenue rec;:lgn[ﬂun under IFRS 15
Sale of Goods

The Company's contracts with customers for the sale of zouds generaliy include one performance
aibligation. The Company has Included that revenue from sate of goods should be recognized at the point
in time when contral of the asset is transferred to the customer, generzally on delivery of the goods.

il -
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

Determining the transactlon price

The Company's revenue Is derived from fixed price contracts and therefore the amount of revenue to be
earned from each contract is determined by reference to those fixed prices.

Other income

Other income is recognized on an accrual basis or when the Company's right to receive payment is
established.

(i} Leases

All leases are accounted for by recognizing a right-of-use asset and a lease liability except for:
» Leases of low vatue assets; and
» Leases with a duration of 12 manths or less.

IFRS 16 was adopted January 1, 2019 without restatement of comparative figures. For an explanation of
the transitlonal requirements that were applied as at 1 January 2019. The following policies apply
subsequent to the date of (nitial application January 1, 2019, Lease liabilities are measured at the present
value of the contractual payments due to the lessor over the lease term, with the discount rate
determined by reference to the rate inherent in the lease unless (as is typicaliy the case) this is not readily
determinable, in which case the group's incremental borrowing rate on commencement of the lease is
used. Variable lease payments are only included In the measurement of the lease Hability if they depend
on an index or rate. In such cases, the initial measurement of the lease Habillty assumes the varlable
element will remain unchanged throughout the lease term. Other variable lease payments are expensed
in the period to which they relate.

On Inltlal recognition, the carrying value of the lease liability also Includes:
* Amounts expected to be payable under any residual value guarantes;

* The exercise price of any purchase option granted in favor of the group if 1t is reasonable certain to
as5055 that option;

» Any penalties payable for terminating the lease, if the term of the lease has been pstimated on the basis
of termination option being exercised. Right of use assets are initially measured at the amount of the
lease liabllity, reduced for any lease incentives recaived, and Increased for:

»iease payments made at or before commencement of the lease;

oinitial direct costs incurred; and

+«The amount of any provision recognized where the group is contractuslly required to dismantle, remove
or restare the [eased asset.

L=
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED)

[t} Leasas {Continued)

Subsequent to initial measurement lease liabilities increase as a result of interest charged at a2 constant
rate on the balance outstanding and are reduced for lease payments made. Right-of-use assets are
amaortizad on a stralght-fine basis over the remaining term of the lease or over the remaining economic
life of the asset if, rarely, this is judged to be shorter than the lease term. When the group revises its
estimate of the term of any lease [(because, for example, it re-assesses the probahility of a lessee
extenslon or termination option heing exercised), it adjusts the carrying amount of the fease lability to
reflect the payments to make over the revised term, which are discounted using a revised discount rate,

The carrying value of lease liabilities is simifarly revised when the variable element of future lease
paymenis dependent on a rate or index is revised, except the discount rate ramains unchanged. in both
cases an equivalent adjustment is made to the carrying value of the right-of-use asset, with the revised
carrying amaount being amortized over the remaining (revised) lease term. If the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset is adjusted to zero, any further reduction is recognized in profit or loss,

{i) Oifsetting

FInancial assets and lizbilities are offset, and the net amount Is reported In the statement of financial
position, if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and the
Company intends to settie either on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the Kability simultaneously.

[k] Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Campany has a present cbligation {legal or constructive) as a resuit
of a past event, it is probable that the Company wiil be required to settle the obtigation, and a reliable
estitnate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision Is the best estimate of the conslderation required te settle the
present abligation at the reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation, Where a provislon Is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation,
It's carrying amount is the present vaiue of those cash flows.

(i} Provision for employees’ end-of-service benefits

The Company provides end-of-service benefits to its expatriste empioyees In accordance with the Bahrain
Lahour Law. The entitlernent to these benefits is based upon the employee’s final salary and length of
service, sutifect to the completion of 2 minimum service pericd. The expected costs of these benefits are
accrued over the perlod of the employmant.

For Bahraini employees, the Company makes contributions to the Social Insurance Organisation besed on

the applicable law and regulation. The Company obligations are limited to these contributions, which are
expensed when due.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED] |

(m) Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency {foreign currencies) are recopnised
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transaction. At the end of each reporting periad,
monetary items denominated in foreign currerncies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Exchange differences are included in prefit or loss.

(n) Borrowlng costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acguisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their Intended use or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale,

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 3, the Company 15
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
ltablilies that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
basad anr historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant, Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The astimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized In the period in whith the estimate is revised i the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgments in applying the entity’s accounting policies

in the process of applying the entity’s accounting policies, which are described In Note 3, and due to the
nature of operations, the management did not have to make judgements that may have significart effect
on the amounts recognized In the financizl statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

There are na key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing 2 material adjustment to the carrying amaunts
of assets and llabilities due to the limited operations of the Company.

Useful lives of plont and eguipment

The management determines the useful lives of plant and equipment and the related depreciation
charge. The depreciation charge for the period will change sipnificantly if the actusl life is different from
the estimated usefef life of the asset.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES [CONTINUED)

The review carried out by management in the current period did not Indicate any necessity for changes
in the usefu! lives of the plant and equipment,

Impairment pravision for receivables

The manapement tests, regularly, whether any receivables have suffered impalrment in accordance with
accounting poelicies stated in Note 3. The recoverable amount of the receivable is determined based on
estimated collectabllity.

-
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5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Balance as at January 1, 2018
Additions during the year
falance as at December 31, 2018
Additions during the year
Balance as at December 31, 2019

Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at January 1, 2018

Depreciation expenses for the year
Balance as at December 31, 2013
Depreciation expenses for the year
Balance as at December 31, 2019

Met Book Amount
Balance as at December 31, 2018
Balance as at December 31, 2019

--------

Furnlturg_
Office Motor and
Eguipments  vehicle fittings
2,471 37,155 240
<05 2 564
2,876 37,155 B04
7976 37,155 804
[——  ——— — - ] —Fﬂ=
482 5,511 49
492 7431 37
974 12,?12 BG
595 7431 161
1,569 20,373 247
[ e c— —— LT
2,002 24,213 718
1,407 16,782 557
EryiOiTe——————————

26,933

18,746
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f. INVENTORIES

2019 2018
Footwear and bags 50,599 84,494

7. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
. 203% 2018
Trade recelvahles 42,857 53,343
Deposits 600 GO0
Advance to suppliers . . 2,361

43,457 56,304

The Company has not applied the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit fosses which
uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade and other recelvables.

Trade receivables ara unsecured, noninterest-bearing and have credit terms of 60 to 120 days. Advances
to suppliers pertain to advance payments on purchases of trade goods, materials and services for the
pperations of the business. Advances to employees are noninterest-bearing and are normally settled
through satary deduction.

8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

Related party transactions in the financial statements reprcsents amounts due to/from Directors,
Executive Management and entities under common control as Tollows:

Name of related party Designation Amount due from related party
Sajeeb Kasim Managing Director 6,761
Name of _rgla;eg party Designation Amount due to related pacty
Abhdulrahman Ali Sager Alatawi Chairman 1,724

Key Management Personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and rasponsibility for planning, directing
and controliing the activities of the Company, directly or indirectly, including the Directors of the
Company,

Transactions with key management personal included in the statement of profit or loss are as follows

Nature of transaction MNature of refationship 2019 2018
Short Term Employee benefits Directors - 12,000
Drector sitiing fee Diractors 2,400

5
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9. SHARE CAPITAL:

The share capital of the Company comprises of 100 shares of BD 50 each {2018: 100 shares of BD 50 each)
contributed as follows:

Percentage of

Number ownership

ofshares  Amount 2 interest

Abdulrahman Al Sager Afatawi 51 2,550 ' 51%
Sajeeb Kasim 49 2,450 . 49%

100 5,000 100%

Ly s eE

10, STAT VE

As required by the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law, an amount equal to minimum of 10% of
Company's profit bafore approgriations is to be transferred to a non-distributable reserve account untH
such time as a minimum of 50% of the share capital Is set aslde. This reserve is not avallable for
distribution except in the circumstances stipulated in the Bahrain Commercial Companles Law, No
amount Is transferred to statutory reserve due to loss incusred during the year.

11. SHAREHOLDERS’ ACCOUNT:

The batance In Shareholder’s account represents the amount contributed by the shareholders, which is
Interest free and not repayable in the near future.

12, PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEES END-OF-SERVICE BENEFITS:

The movement in end-of-service benefits liability applicable to expatriate employees Is as follows:

2019 2018
Bzlance at the beginning of the year 1,210 -
Accruals during the year _ LEZD 14819
Bafance at the end of the year /3,030 1,810
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13. BORROWINGS:

Bank overdraft
Yehicie toan

Presented as:
Current

Bank overdraft
Vehicle loan

Non-current
Vehicle loan

Bank Overdraft has been taken to fund the Company’

facility amount is BD 90,000 {2018: BD 90,000},

14, TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES:

Trade payables
Accrued Expensas

15. GEN AND AD RATIVE

Staff costs

Other axpenses

Rent and utilitles
Depreciation expenses
Printing & stationery
Director Fees

Fuet Charges

Repalr & maintenance
Telephone Internet
Audit Fees
Commission

L1

2019 2018
85,136 85,206
22,743 25,331
107,885 110,437

2019 2018
85,136 85,206
] 10,951 11,812
56,087 97,018
11,798 13,419

s working capital requirement. The overdraft

2019 2018
42,107 37,343
35,338 32,555
??‘445 69,898

2019 2018
42,130 34,666
26,031 23,908
13,290 6,960

8,187 7,960

2,731 3,061

2,400 12,000

2,243 2,535

1,521 2,851

758 1,531
40D 168
118 775
99,809 96,675

e . ———
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16, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financtal instruments include financial assets and financial llabilities carrled on the statement of financlal
pasiticn. Financlal assets Include trade and other receivables, due from related party, cash and bank
balances. Financlal llabilities Include trade and other payables, due to refated party and borrowings. The

particular recognition methods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with
each item.

The Company is exposed to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

16.1 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a
result of changes in market prices as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and change equity prices,

16.1.1 Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financlal Instrument will
fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s financial assets and financial llabiiities
are denominated primarily In Bahraint Dinars and accordingly management consider the Company is not
exposed to significant currency risk.

16.1.2 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a finandial instrument will fluctoate
due to changes in market interest rates. The Company’s Interest risk is limited te the borrowings from the
financial institutions.

if interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Company's profit for the year ended December 31, 2019 would increase/decrease by BD 5,394
16.1.3 Equity price risk

Equity price risk Is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial Instrument witl decrease
s a result of changes in equity prices. The Company is not exposed to the risk of change In equity prices
as the Company’s financial assets does not include investments in marketable securities.

16.2 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financlal instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party
by failing to discharge an obligation. AHl financial assets are subject to credit risk. Credit exposure is
controlled by counterparty limits that are reviewed.

The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties. Credit risk on liguid
funds is limited because the counter parties are banks with reasonably gooed credit ratings.

The management censiders the maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to carrying amount of the
financial assets at the reporting date.
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16. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {CONTINUED)

16.3 Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk, also referred to as funding risk, is the risk that an enterprise will encounter difficulty In
meeting commitments sssoclated with financial Habilities. Liguidity risk may result from an inability to
sell a financiel asset quickly at close to Its falr value.

" Following are the contractual maturities of financiaf liabilities including interest payments, if any:

2019 Carrying Contractual 12months More than 12
amount undiscounted or less months
cash flows
Tracle and other pavables 77,445 77,445 77,445 -
Due to related party 1,724 1,724 1,724 -
Long term borrowings 107,885 107,885 06,087 11,758
187,054 187,054 175,256 11,798
2018 Carrylng Contractual 12months More than 12
amount undiscounted or less months
__cash flows ’
Trade and other paybles 69,898 64,898 69,898 -
Lang term borrowings 110,437 110,437 97,018 13,419
180,335 180,335 166,916

16.4 Falr value of financial assets and labllities

e S——T

13,419

Fair value Is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a Hability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences may arise
between the carrying vaiues and the fair value estimates.

The carrying value of il financlal assets and liabllitles reflected in the financial statements approximate

their fair values at the reporting dates.
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17, CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company manages the capital structure in the context of economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the undearlying assets. The Company’s oblective when managing capital is to safegpard
the Company's abllity to continue as a going concern and to maintain a capital base to support the
sustalned development of its businesses and maximize the Shareholders’ wealth,

In order to achieve this objective, the Company mionitors capita! using gearing ratio, which Is net debt
divided by Equity, Equity includes share capital, retasined earnings, statutary reserve and Shareholder's
accounts.

Gearing ratio:
2013 2018
Lang term borrowings 107,885 110,437
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (504) (1,971}
Net debt 107,381 108,466
Equity (70,117) (4,732}
Gearing ratlo - RS =
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General infermation

Commerclal Registratlon Number 101850-1, dated July 20, 2016
Board of Directors Abdulrahman Ali Sager Alatawi
Sajeeb Kasim

Registered Office

Banker

Auditors Awael Public Accountants & Manegement Consultants
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Manama

Kingdom of Bahrain



Directors’ report

The Diractors of S.A. Fashion Trading W.LL. {the "Company”) have pleasure in presenting the arnual
report and the finencial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2020,

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Company are the saleftrade of clothing, footwesr, appare!, accessories and
ieather articles.

Results

The results of the Company are given In Page 6 to the financial statements.

Directors and Management

Thera is na change in the management during the year,

Auditors

The financial statements have been audited by Awael Public Accountants & Management Consultants
Bahrain, who has expressed their willingness to continue in oflice and considered themselves ellgible for
re-appointment,

Appreclation to the staff

The Directors take this opportunity 10 place on record thelr appreciation to the staff for their loyaity and
dedication, which has greatly helped to maintain the reputation and results of the Company.

(Jadnlais?

Abduirahman Ali Sager Alatawi
Chalrman

March 3, 2021
Riffa, Kingdom of Bahrain
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Yo the Shareholder of
5.A. Fashion Trading W.L.L.
Riffa - Kingdom of Bahrain

Aeport on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Quailfied opinion

We have audited the financial statements 0f S.A. Fashion Trading W.LL. (“the Company”), which comprise
vhe statement of financial position as at December 31, 2020, and the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity =nd statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including  summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinlon, except for possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified opinion
sectlan of the report, the accompanying financial statements present fairly the financial position of the
Cornpany as at December 31, 2020, and of its financial performance and Its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with international Financiol Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basls for Qualified opinion

1. We were appointed as auditors of the Company subsequent to the year ended December 31, 2020
and thus did not observe the counting of the physical inventories at the end of the year. We are
unable to satisfy ourselves by alternative means concerning the inventory quantities as at December
31, 2020, As a result, we are unable to determine whether any agjustments were necessary inrespect
of the recorded or unrecorded inventories.

2. The Company did not follow the expected credit loss method for financial assets in the preparation
of financial statements which in our opinion, is not in actordance with International Financial
Reporting Standard No 9- Financial Instruments (“IFRS 9"}

Wwe conducted our audit in accordance with international Standords on Auditing (15As). Our
responsibilities under thase standards are further described In the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are Independent of the Company in accordance
with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountonts’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountonts
{IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.
\We believe that the audit evidence we have abtained is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basls for
our gualified opinien.

Emphasis of matters

We draw attention to Note 3 to the financiai statements which indicates that the Company has a deflcit
in equity amounting to 80 74,785 {8D 68,393 as at December 31, 2019} as at December 31, 2020 and
accumutated losses amounting to BD 135,365 (BD 147,484 as at December 31, 2019) as at December 31,
1020, These conditions may cast significant doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern, our report is not qualified in respect of 1his matter as the shareholder agreed to meet future
expenses of the Company when needed.
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Other Information

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, cansider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financlal statements or our knowledge abiained in the audit or atherwise appears 10 ke materially
misstated.

(f, based on the work we have performed, we canclude that there is a material misstaternent of this other
informatlon; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibllities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements In
accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal contro! a5 management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from materlal misstatement, whether due to fraud
QF error.

in preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company of to
cease operations, or has na realistic alternative but to do so.

Management is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financlal statememts

Our objectives are to cbtain reasonabie assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due teo fraud or error, and to Issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is 3 high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when It exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material If, individually or in the
apgregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an auditin accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and malntain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
10 fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and olitain audit
pvidence that is sufficient and appropriate 10 provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstaternent resuiting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentlanal omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 10 the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumslances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinign on the effectiveness of the Company’s internat control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policles used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
3
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s+ Conclude on the apprapriateness of management’s use of the gaing concern basls of accounting
and, hased on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events ar canditions that may cast significant doubt on the Compsany's 2bility to centinue as a
paing concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention In our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to madify our opinion. Our concluslons are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going cancerm.

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financlal statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statermnents represent the underlying transactions and
avents in @ manner that achleves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, Including any significant deficiencies in
internal controf that we identify during our audit,

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

As required by the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law, we report that:

a) the Company has maintained proper accounting records during the year and the financial
statements agree with those records,

b) the financlal information contained in the Board of Director's report is consistent with the financiai
statements,

¢} Except for the Company baving a negative equily which is a vielation of Article 264, we are not aware
of any violations during the period of the Commercial Companies Law, or the terms of the Company’s
memorandum and articles of assoclation that would have had a material adverse effect on the
husiness of the company or on its financial position; and

d) satisfactory explanations and information have been provided to us by the management in response
to all our requests.

o — e — e

. ! ﬂ;‘ 'I:-'.-_:irq IFQ-':-.'.-.'.-';:{"--"--F =

Manama, Kingdem of Bahrain. #\\ b
Auditor Reglster Number 11 e
o LT

March 3, 2021 LR
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S.A, FASHION TRADING W.L.L.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT DECEMEBER 31, 2020

{In Bahraini Pinars)
Notes 2020 2019

ASSETS
Mon-current gscets
Property, piant, and equipment 5 2,350 18,746
Total non-curfent assets 3,350 18,746
Current ossets
Inventories B 33,850 50,4589
Trade and other receivables 7 11,741 43457
Due from a related party 8 6,761 5,761
Cash and cash aguivalants 12 S04
Tatal current assets 52,364 101,221
Total assets 54,754 119,967
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 9 5,000 g, 000
Statutory Teserve 10 1,347 -
Arcumulated losses {135,365) {147 ,484)
Shareholder's account 11 54,233 74,051
Total equity [74,785) _ {68,393}
Current lobilities
Pravision for employees’ end-of-service benefits 12 3,030
Long term borrowings 13 11,798

. 14 RJR
Curcent lioblifties
Short term barrowings 13 5,556 96,087
Loan from a related party 8 55,000 -
Trade and other payables 14 68,983 77,445
Total current liahilities 129,539 173,532
Jotal liabilities 125,539 188,360
Total equity and liabllitles 54,754 119,967

The financial statements ware approved on March 3, 2020 and signed by:

JQM@%?

Abdulrahman ali 5ager alatawi
Chalrman

Notes on pages 9 to 24 form an integral part of these financial statemenis
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5.4, FASHION TRADING W.L.L.

YATEMENT OF PROFIT OR AN

H D
{In Bahraini Dinars)
Notes 2020 2019
fRavanue 17,688 51,630
Costs of revenue {17,681) (56,873)
Gross prafit 7 34,757
Other ingcome s 36,462 1,286
Ganeral and administrative expenses 16 {21,082) (91,622)
Cepraciation 5 (1,921} (8,187
Finance cost . {1,618)
profit/{loss) for the year 13,466 [65,385)
Other comprehensive income a 3
Total comprehensive profit/{loss) for the year 13,466 {65,385)

(Jsatde 7

Abdulrahman All Saqer Alatawi
Chairman

Notes on pages 9 to 24 form an integrai part of these financial statements
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5.A. FASHION TRADING W.L.L

STATEMENT OF CHANGES iN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

(In Bahraini Dinars)

Balance at January 1, 2015

Total comprehensive loss for the year
Balance at December 31, 2013

Total comprehensive profit for the year
Transferred to statutory reserve
Balance at December 31, 2020

Notes on pages 9 to 24 form an integral part of these financial statements

Share Statutory  Accumulated Sharsholders
capital Reserve losses account Total
5,000 - (82,095) 74,092 |3,007)
- . {65,385) - (65,385)
5,000 - {147,484) 74,092 [68,292)
- - 13,466 - 13,466
- 1347 {1,347) Y >
5,000 1,347 {135,365} _74,092 (54,926}
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S.A. FASHION TRADING W.L1.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
In Bahraini Dinars

Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit/{loss) for the year
Adjustments for;
Depreciation expense
Pravision for employees’ end-of-service benefits
Profit from sale of fixed assets
Profit from non-operating activities
Finance costs

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Inventorias

Trade and ather receivables

Trade and other payables

Due from related party

Employees’ end-of-service benefits paid
Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from finanting activities:
Finance costs paid

Lozn from a related party

Net movement in borrowings

Net movement in Shareholder's account
Net ¢ash used in financing activities

Decraase In cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
Represented by:

Bank balances
Cash balance

2020 2019
13,466 (65,385)
1,921 8,187
2,681 1,220
(2,758) -
{30,136) -
. 1,619
(14,826) (54,359)
16,649 33,995
31,716 12,847
(8,462) 7,547

- 95Q
25,077 980
[5,711) -
19,366 980

. {1,619)

55,000 .
{55,000} (2,552)
(19,858) .
(19,858) (4,271)
(452) (1,467)
S04 1,971

12 504

3 150

9 354

12 504

MNotes on pages 9 to 24 form an integral part of these financial statements
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S.A. FASHION TRADING W.L.L

NOTES TO THE FINANCAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED EMBER 21, 2020
(In Bahraini Dinars)

1. STATUS AND ACTIVITIES:

S.A. Fashion Trading W.L.L. ("the Company”) is = limitad llability company registered with the Ministry of
tndustry, Commerce and Tourism in the Kingdom of Bahrain under commercizl registration number
101850-1 dated July 20, 2CG16. The repistered  office of the Company s
Rutlding 111, Road 7, 8lack 911, Riffa, Kingdem of Bahrain,

The principal activities of the Company are the saleftrade of clothing, footwear, apparel, accessories and
leather articles.

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND STANDARDS:

a) New standards, interpretations and amendments adopted from January 1, 2020

New standards Impacting the Group that have been adopted in the annual financlal statements for the
year ended December 31, 2020 are:

I. Definition of o Business (Amendments to IFRS 3);
Hi. Interest Rate Benchmeark Reform — IBOR ‘phase 2° [Amendments to IFRS 9, 1AS 39 and IFRS 7); and
Hif, COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendments Lo IFRS 16)

There are a number of standards, amendments to standards, and interpretations which have been Issued
by the IASB that are effective in future accounting periods that the group has decided not to adopt early.

The following amendments are effective for the period beginning January 1, 2022

. Onerous Controcts = Cost of Fulfilling a Contract {Amefidments to IAS 37);

fi, Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16);

itf, Annual improvements to IFRS Stondards 2018-2020 (Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 8, IFARS 16 and IAS
41); and

v, References to Conceptual Fromework {Amendments to IFRS 3)

In January 2020, the IASB issued amendments to LAS 1, which clarify the criteria used to determine
whether liabilities are classified as current or non-current. These amendments clarify that current or non-
current classification is based on whether an entity has a right at the end of the reperting period to defer
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting perlod, The amendments also
clarify that ‘settiement’ includes the transfer of cash, goods, services, or equily instruments unless the
obligation to transfer equity instruments arises from a conversion feature classified as an equity
Instrument separately from the liability component of a2 compound financial instrument. The
amendments were originally effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after lanuary 1, 2022,
However, in dMay 2020, the effective date was deferred to annuzl reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2023,

b} Other

The Group does not expact any other standards issued by the LASB, but not yet effective, to have a
material impact on the group. IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts {effective January 1, 2023] - In June 2020, the
IASE issued amendmeants {o IFRS 17, including a deferral of its effective date to fanuary 1, 2023,



5.A. FASHION TRADING W.L.L

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

{In Bahraini Dinars}

3, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Basls of preparation

The Company's financial statements have been prepared on basis of historical cost. The Company's
flnancial statements are presented in Bahrain Dinars which is the functional currency of the Company. All
amounts are rounded to the nearest Bahrain Dinar.

Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS") and the applicable requirements of the Bahrain Commercial Companies
Law. .

Going concern

The Company has a deficit in equity amounting 1o BD 74,785 (BD ©8,393 as at December 31, 2019) and
accumulated losses amounting to BD 135,365 (BD 147,484 as at December 31, 2019) as at December 31,
2020, These conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt
about the Company's ability to continue as a golng concern.

(al] Property, plant and equipment

Property plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation, other than
capital work in progress. Cost includes all costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to working
condition for its intended use.

Depreciation Is calculated on the straight-line method to write-off the cost of property, plant and
equipment to their estimated residual values over thelr expected useful life of 5 years.

Repalrs and renewals are charged to the profit or loss when the expenditure is incurred. The gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the
prafit or loss.

The carrying values of the property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate the carrying values may not be recoverable. If any such Indication
exists, and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amounts, the property, plant and
equipment are written down to their recoverable amounts.

{b] Inventories

Inventorias are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value after making allowance for any obsolete
or slow-moving items, Cost is based on the weighted average price method. Net realizable value represents
the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred in marketing,
selling and distribution.

[c) Impalrment of tangible assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s assets other than the financial assets are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of Impairment. It any such indication exists,
the asset's recoverable smount is estimated, and an impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrylng
amount exceeds the recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the profit and loss
account.



5.4, FASHION TRADING W.L.L

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(In Bahraini Dinars)

3, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED):

(d} Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabibities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and Rabilities comprise all assets and liabilities reflected in the statement of financial
position, although excluding investments in subsidiarles, equity accounted associated companies and joint
ventures, employee benefit accruals, pre -payments and taxation payable.

Initial recognition and measurement

The Company recognises financial assets and liabilities in the statemeat of financlal position when, and
only when, the Company becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
instruments are classified at inception into one of the following categories, which then determine the
subsaquent measurement methodology.

Flnancial assets are classified into one of the following three categorles:

Financial assets at amortised cost;
Financlal assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH;
Financial assets at fair value through the profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financlal llabilities are classifled into one of the following two categories:

Financial llabllities at amortised cost;
Financial liabilitles at fair value through the profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financlal assets are Initially recognised at fair value, including transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset except transaction costs on financial instruments
measured at FYTPL are not included in the amount at which the instrument is initially measured; instead,
they are immediately recognised in profit or loss. Financial liabilities are Initially recognised at fair value,
representing the proceeds received net of premiums, discounts and transaction costs that are dicectly
attributable to the financiat liability.

All regular way purchases and sales of listed/ quoted financial assets and liabilities classified as FYTPL are
recognised on the trade date, ie., the date on which Company becomes party to the contractual
provislons of the investments.

All regular way purchases and sales of other financia! assets and liabillties are recognised on the
settlement date, i.e., the date on which the asset or Nability is received from or delivered to the
counterparty.

Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that reguire delivery within the
time frame genersly established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

11



S.A, FASHION TRADING W.L.L.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
{in Bahraini Dinars)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED]:
{d) Financial Instruments{continued}

Impairment of flnanclal assets

The Company recognises loss allowance for ECL on financial assets measured at amortized cost. Loss
allowance for trade receivables is measured at an amount egual to lifetime ECLs.

Credit-impaired financiol assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financlal assets carried at amortised cost are
credit impalred. A financial asset is "credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimentat
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred,

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impalred includes the following observable data:
significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

a breach of contract such as a default ar being more than 90 days past due;

it is probable that the berrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or
the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficuities,

Presentation of allowance for ECL In the statement of financial position

* ¥ B

Loss allawances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

(¢] Related party transactions

These represent transactions with related parties, as defined in international Accounting Standard 24:
Related Party Disclosures, which include the Directors, Shareholders, their close family members and
entities in which they are principal owners. flelated party balances are unsecured, Interest free and have
no fixed maturity.

(f} Revenue recognition under IFRS 15
Sale of Goods

The Company's contracts with customers for the sale of goods generally include one performance
abligation, The Company has included that revenue from sale of goods should be recognized at the peint
in time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on dellvery of the goods.

Determining the transaction price

The Company's revenue is derived from fixed price contracts and therefore the amount of revenue 1o be
earned from each contract is determined by reference to those fixed prices,

Other [ncome

Other income is recognized on an accrual basis or when the Company’s right te receive payment is
established Other income includes suppert from gain feom transfer of asset, waiver of borrowings and
reversal of provisions.

15



S.A. FASHION TRADING W.L.L

NOTES E FINANCI JTEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
{in Bahraini Dinars)

3. SIGN]FICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES i

g} Leases

All leases are accounted far by recognising 2 right-of-use asset and a lease liability except for:
» Leases of tow value assets; and
» Leases with a duration of 12 months or less.

IFRS 16 was adopted lanuary 1, 2013 without restatement of comparative figures. For an explanation of
the transitional requirements that were applied as at January 1, 2019, The following policies apply
subsequent to the date of initlal application January 1, 2019, Lease liabilities are measurad at the present
value of the contractual payments due to the lessor over the lease term, with the discount rate
determined by reference 1o the rate inherent in the lease unless (asis typicaily the case] this is not readily
determinable, in which case the group’s incremental borrowing rate on commencement of the lease Is
used. Variable lease payments are only included in the measurement of the lease liability if they depend
on an index ar rate. In such cases, the initial measurement of the lease liability assumes the variable
element will remain unchanged throughout the lease term. Other variable lease payments are expensed
in the period to which they relate.

On initial recognition, the carrying value of the lease liability also includes;

= Amounts expected to be payable under any residual value guarantee;

» The exercise price of any purchase option granted in favor of the group if it is reasonably certain to
assess that option;

s Any penalties payable for terminating the lease, if the term of the lease has been estimated on the basis
of termination option being exercised. Right of use assets are initially measured at the amount of the
lease liability, reduced for any lease incentives received, and increased for:

s Lease payments made at ar before commencement of the lease;

« Initial direct costs incurred; and

« The arount of any pravision recognised where the group is contractually required to disrnantle, remove
or restore the leased asset.

Subsequent to initial measurement lease liabilities increase as a result of interest charged at a constant
rate on the balance outstanding and are reduced for lease payments made. Right-of-use assets are
amaortised on a straight-line basis over the remaining term of the lease or gver the remaining economic
life of the asset if, rarely, this is judged to be shorter than the lease term. When the group revises its
estimate of the term of any lease {because, for example, it re-assesses the probability of a jessee
extension or termination cption being exercised), it adjusts the carrying amount of the lease liability to
refiect the payments to make over the revised term, which are discounted using a revised discount rate,
The cacrying value of lease liabifities is similarly revised when the variable element of future lease
payments dependent on a rate or index Is revised, except the discount rate remgins unchanged. In both
cases an equivalent adjiustment is made to the carrying value of the right-of-use asset, with the revised
carrying amount being amortised over the remaining [revised) lease term. If the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset is adjusted to zero, any further reduction is recognised in profit or loss.



S.A. FASHION TRADING W.LL.

OTES TO THE FINANCIAL STAT NTS

FQR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
[In Bahraini Dinars)

3. SIGNIF ACCOUNTING POLICIES N
{h] Offsetting

ginancial assets and habilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the statement of financtal
position, if the Company has a fegally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and the
Company intends to settle elther on & net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(i) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settie the obligation, and a rellable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligatien.

The amount recognised as a provision Is the best estimate of the consideratlon required to settie the
present obligation at the reporting date, considering the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation,
it's carrying amount Is the present value of those cash flows.

(i Provision for employees’ end-of-service benefits

The Company provides end-of-service benefits to its expatriate employees in accordance with the Bahrain
Labour Law. The entitiement to these benefils is based upon the employee’s final salary and length of
service, subject to the completion of a minimum service perlod. The expected costs of these benefits are
accrued over the period of the employment.

For Bahraini employees, the Company makes contributions to the Soclal Insurance Organisation based on
the applicable law and regulation. The Company obligations are limited to these contributians, which are
expensed when due.

(k) Forelgn currencles

Transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional curcency (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transaction. At the end of each reporiing period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevalling at that date.
Exchange differences are included in profit or loss.

{ly Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributabie to the acquisition, construction or production of gualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for thelr intended use or
sale, sre added to the cost of those assets, untli such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.
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5.A. FASHION TRADING W.L.L.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

{In Bahraini Dinars)

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

In the application of the Company’s accounting palicies, which are described in Note 3, the Company is
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptians are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the periad in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
periad, or In the perigd of the revision and future periads if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical Judgments In applying the entity’s accounting policles

in the process of applying the entity's accounting policies, which are described in Note 3, and due to the
nature of aperations, the management did not have to make judgements that may have significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the finencial statemenis.

Key sources of estimation uncertalnty

There are no key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the reporting date, that have 2 sigoificant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities due to the limited operations of the Company.

Useful lives of plant and equipment

The management determines the useful lives of plant and equipment and the related depreciation
charge, The depreciation charge for the period will change significantly if the actual life is different from
the estimated usefu! life of the asset. The review carried out by management in the current period did
not indicate any necessity for changes in the useful lives of the plant and equipment.

Impairment of tangible assets

The management tests regularly whether tangible assets have suffered impairment in accordance with
the accounting palicies stated in Note 3. The recoverable amount of an asset is determined based on
value-in-use method. This method uses estimated cash flow prejections over the estimated useful life of
the asset discounted using market rates.

Impairment provision for receivables

The management tests, regularly, whether any receivables have suffered impairment in accordance with

accounting policies stated in Note 3. The recoverable amount of the recelvable is determined based on
astimated collectabifity.

12
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5.A. FASHION TRADING W.L.L.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

{In Bahralni Dinars)

3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Furniture

Eggipment vehicle and fittings Totaf
Balance as at December 31, 2018 2976 37,155 804 40,935
Additions during the year - i - 3
Batance as at December 31, 2019 2,976 37,155 804 40,935
Deletions during the year - 131,330) - (31,330)
Balance as at December 31, 2020 2,976 5,825 204 8,605
Accumuiated depreciation
Balance as at December 31, 2018 974 12,942 26 14,002
Depreciation expenses for the year 595 7,431 161 8,187
Balance as at December 31, 2019 1,569 20,373 247 22,189
Deletlons during the year - (16,855) - {16,895)
Depreciation expenses for the year sS85 1,165 161 1,921
Balance as at December 31, 2020 2,164 4,643 408 7,215
-_—T e— e i i i
Net Book Amount
Balance as at December 31, 2019 1,407 16,782 557 18,746
Balance as at December 31, 202
er 0 a12 1,182 396 2,390
6. INVENTORIES
2020 2019
Footwear and bags including raw materials 33,850 50,499
7. TRAD D R REC ES:
2020 2019
Trade recelvables 1,453 42,857
Depaosits 600 600
Advance to suppliers 9. 648 -
11,741 43,457

The Company nas not applied the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which
uses & lifetime expected loss aflowance for all trade and other receivables.

Trade recelvables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and have credit terms of 60 to 120 days. Advances
to suppliers pertain to advance payments on purchases of trade goods, materials and services for the
operations of the business, Advances to employees are noninterest-bearing and are normally settled
through salary deducticn.,

is



5.A. FASHION TRADING W.L.L.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(In Bahraini Dinars)

8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

Related party transactions in the financial statements represents amounts due toffrom Directors,
Executive Management and relatives of sharehaolders as follows:

Amount due from reloted porty Noture of relationship 2020 2019
Sa{eeb Kasim Managing Directar 6,761 6,751
Logn from a reloted porty Noture of reloticnship 20240 2019
Fatima Mohamed Yousif Albalooshi Spouse of shareholder 55,000 -

Ms. Fatima Mohamed Yousif Albalooshi is the spouse of Mr. Abdulrahman Ali Sager Alatawi, The amount
represents full and final settlement amount pald by her on behalf of the Company to Bahrain
Development Bank on August 13, 2020 to settle the overdraft balance.

B n T

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing
and controlling the activities of the Company, directly or indirectiy, Including the Directors of the
Company.

Transactions with key management personal included in the statement of profit or loss are as follows

Natuce of transaction Nature of relaticnship 2018 2018
Director sitting fee Directors 2,400 2,400
9. SHARE CAPITAL:

The share capital of the Company as at December 31, 2020 comprises of 100 shares of
BD 50 each, (2019: BD 5,000) contributed as follows:

Percentage of

Number ownership

of shares Amount interest

Abdulrahman All Sager Alatawi 51 2,550 51%
sajeeh Kasim 49 2,450 A489%
100 5,000 100%

10, STATUTORY RESERVE:

As required by the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law, an amount egua! to minimum of 10% of
Company's profit before appropriations is to be transferred to a non-distributable reserve account unti!
such time as a minimum of 50% of the share capital is set aside. This reserve is not available for
distribution except in the circumstances stipulated in the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law. An
amount of BHD 1,347 {2019, nil} is transferred to statutory reserve during the year.



S.A. FASHION TRADING W.L.L

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OR CEMBER 31, 2020

[In Bahralni Qinars)

11. SHAREHOLDERS' ACCOUNTS:

The balance In Sharehoider’s account represents the amount contributed by the shareholder for
operation of the Company, which is interest free and not repayable in the near future.

12. PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEES END-OF-SERVICE BENEFITS:

The mavement in end-of-service benefits liability applicable to expatriate employeas is as follows:

2020 2019
Batance at the beginning of the year 3,030 1,810
Accruals during the year 2,681 1,220
Pald during the year {5,711) -
Balance at the end of the yvear - 3,030
13. BORROWINGS:
2020 2019
Bank overdraft - 85,136
Vehicle loan 5,556 22,749
5.556 1&?,555
Presented as 2020 2019
Curvent
Bank overdraft - 85,136
Vehicle loan 5,556 10,851
5,556 96,087
Non-current o
Vehiele loan - 11,798

[

Bank Overdraft has been taken to fund the Company’s working capital requirement. The overdraft facility
amount is BD 90,000, which was closed on August 19, 2020 by paying off the settlement amount of BHD
55,000 (2018: BD 50,000).

Outstanding vehicle loan was taken over by a third party by acquiring the title of the vehicles (carrying
cost BHO 18,330) and with an agreement to pay off the remalning dues. Vehicle of carrying cost BHD
13,000 was taken by Bzhraln credit and agreed for a settlement of batance amount for BHD 5,556 as per
leiter issued by them dated February 10, 2021 and the validity of the letter is March 10, 2021.

14. TRADE AN} OTHER PAYABLES:

2020 2019
Trade payables 31,300 42,107
Accrued Expenses 37,683 35,338

68,983 77,445

21
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15, OTHER INCOBME

2020 2019
Waiver of borrowings by bank 30,136 -
Excess provision reversed 3,568 -
(Gain on sale of transfer of vehicle 2,758 -
Discount received - 1,286

36,462 1,286

15. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES:

2020 £019
Staff costs 11,219 42,130
Rent and utllities 6,234 13,290
Oirector Fees 2,400 2,400
Other expenses 1,229 39,746

21,082 99,809

17. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENYS:

Financlal instruments Include financial assets and financial liabllities carried on the statement of financial
position, Financial assets include trade and ather receivables, due from a related party, cash and bank
balences. Financial Rabllities include borrowings, trade payables, accrued expenses and due to related
parties. The recognition methods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statemems associated
with each [tem,

The Company is exposed to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
18.1 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument wlll fluctuate as a
result of changes in market prices as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices.

The Company is exposed te following market risks,

18.1.1 Currency risk

Currency risk Is the risk that the fair vaiue or future cash flows of a financlal instrument will fluctuate due
t& changes In foreign exchange rates.

The Company's financial assets and financial fiabilities are denominated primarily in Bahralni Dinars and
actordingly the management consider the Company is not exposed to significant foreign currency
exchange risks.



5.A. FASHION TRADING W.L.L.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FQ ENDED D

{In Bahraini Dinars)

18, E Co ED}:

18.1 Market risk{continued)
18.1.2 Interest rate risk

Interest rafe risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
due to changes in market interest rates.

The Company’s intérast risk is limited to the borrowings from the financial institutions,

18.1.2 Equlty price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair vaiue or future cash flows of a financial instrument will decrease
as a result of changes in equity prices. The Company is exposed to equity price risk on investments held-
for-maturity. The Company monitors the investment portfofio based on market indices.

The Company s not exposed to significant equity price the risk of change in equity prices as the
Company’s flnanclal assets does not include investments In marketable securities.

18.2 Credit risk

Credit risk s the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the ather party
by failing to discharge an obligation. All financial assets are subject 1o credit risk,

The Company's credit risk is primarily attributable to bank balance. The company seeks to limit its credit
risk with respect to banks by only dealing with reputable banks.

18.3 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk Is the risk that a Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities. Liquidity risk may result from an inability to sell a financlal asset at close to its fair

value,

Following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities:

2020 Carrying 1to3 to 12 MMore than

amount montihs months 12 monpths

Trade and other payables 68,9483 20,883 48,100 3

Related party balances(net) 48,239 - 48,239 -

Borrowings 5,556 2,556 - -
225,107 26,439 56,339




5.A. FASHION TRADING W.L.L.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3%, 2020

(In Bahraini Dinars)

19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS{CONTINUED}:
18,3 Liquidity risk{contlnued)

2019 Carrying 1ta3 2t 12 Mo an

amount months  mopths 12 months

Trade and ather payables 77,445 14,515 62,930 -
Borrowings 107,885 - 56,087 13,798
187,054 14,515 159,017 11,798

18.4 Falr value of financlal assets and llabilities

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid 1o transfer a liability in an orderly

transaction between market particlpants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences may arise
between the carrying values and the fair value estimates.

The carrying value of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate
their fair values at the reparting dates.

20. OTHER EVENTS

On 11 March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of the coronavirus (COVID-19)
as a global pandemic. As a resuit, economic uncertainties have arisen, and consumer spending has
reduced. The COVID-12 outbreak In the Kingdom of Bahrain has resulted in reduced customer traffic,
temporary reductlon of operating hours and temporary closures as a government mandate. Whilst these
events have had a limited impact on the Company's operations to date, these will have an Increased
implication on the Company's results of operations if the weakened economic environment continues.
Given the uncertainty related te the duration and effect of this pandemic, the management and the Board
of Directors are of the view that the Company will continue as a going concern.

21. CABJTAL MANAGEMENT:

The Company manages the capital structure in the conmtext of economic conditions and the rlsk
characteristics of the underlying assets. The Company's abjective when managing capital Is to safeguard
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain a capitzl base to suppart the
sustained development of its businesses and masimize the Shareholders’ wealth,

To achleve this cbjective, the Company menitors capital using gearing ratie, which is net debt divided by
Equity. Equity includes share tapital, retained earnings, statutory reserve and Shareholder's accounts.

Gearing ratlo:

2020 2013
Borrowings 5,556 107,885
Less: Cash and cash eguivalents (12) . (504)
Net debt 5,542 107,381
Equity {/4,785) (6%8,393)

Gearing ratlo - -
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